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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
MIDDLE DISTRICT OF FLORIDA
TAMPA DIVISION
SANDRA WILLIAMS,
Plaintiff,
V. Case No: 8:14v-1254-T-36TBM
EDUCATIONAL CREDIT
MANAGEMENT CORPORATION and
PERFORMANT RECOVERY, INC.,

Defendants.
/

ORDER

This causeeomes befar the Court upon the Defendant Educational Credit Management
Corporation’s (“"ECMC”)Motion to DismissComplaint(Doc. 15) Plaintiff Sandra Williams
respondedn opposition to the motion (Doc. 23). ECMe€pliedin further support of its motion
(Doc. 27). Defendant Performant Recovery, Inc. (“Performant”) filed a &laticJoinder to
ECMC'’s Motion to DismissComplaintand Requestor Leave to File this Notice Out of Time
(Doc. 29. Plaintiff filed a responsi opposition to Performantisoticeof joinder(Doc. 29. The
Court, having considered the parties’ submissiand being fully advised in the premisesll
now GRANT-IN-PART and DENYIN-PART ECMC’s Motion to Dismiss and DENY
Performants Notice of Joindeas it is a nullity.

l. STATEMENT OF FACTS!

! The following statement of facts is derived from Plainti@smplaint (Doc. 1), the allegations
of which the Court must accept as true in ruling @nitistant Motion to Dismis&eelinder v.
Portocarrerq 963 F.2d 332, 334 (11th Cir. 199R)uality Foods de Centro Am., S.A. v. Latin
Am. Agribusiness Dev. Corp. S.AL1 F. 2d 989, 994 (11th Cir. 1983).
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This dispute arises ovéhne actions takerlby ECMC and its agent, Performaiu, collect
ontheunpaid student loans ohe“Sandra Williams.” ECMC firstmade contact witRlaintiff in
April 2010 by sending her &etter claimingthat she had defaulted on her student loans. Doc. 1
(“Compl.”) § 15. Later that month, ECMC sent Plaintiff another letter, again attempting to collect
on the loan.Id. § 17. Although Plaintiff shares the nanof the debtor listed on the ledgshe has
never taken out a student loaldl.  16. Plaintiff therefore contacted Life Lock, a comptrat
providescredit protection services, regarding the letteic. J 18. A Life Lock agentKathy
McCollock,identifiedthistacticasa common scam to gather an individual's personal information,
andinformed Plaintiffthat she shouldot give out personal information, including her Social
Security Number (“SSN”)Id.

In May 2010, PlaintificalledECMC to inorm them that she did not have any outstanding
studentoans. Id. § 19. ECMC'’s agent asked for her SSN, but Plaintiff dedlinerovide that
information. Id. Later thatsameday,McCollock calledECMC's agent askinghim to returnher
phone call ando remove Plaintiff's nhame frorBCMC'’s contact list. Id.  20. ECMC's agent
never returned McCollock’s phone caltl.

All was silentfor over two yearsThenon August 7, 2012, Plaintiff received a letter from
Perbrmant attempting to collect on tliefaulted student loan on behalf of ECM@. § 21.
Plaintiff promptly wrote back, disputing the validity of the deldt. | 22. Performantesponded
with another letter attempting to collect the ddbit.q 23. On September 9, 2012, Performant sent
Plaintiff yet another letter in an attempt to collectthe defaukd student loan.Id. § 24. In
response, Plaintiff retained the services of Attorney Robert Sammons, wizocease and desist

letter to Performandn her behalfld. § 25.



Another yearof silencepassed. But the mattapparentlyemained uresolved because
on September 17, 201y&:t anotheentity,Pioneer Credit Recovery, IN¢Pioneer”), sent Plaintiff
a letter attempting to collecn the debt on behalf of ECMCId. {1 27 Sammons responded
Pioneerwith a cease and desist letter on behalf of Plaintiff, instructing Pioneer that Plaaatiff h
retained counsel artat shewvas not the “Sandra Williams” identified in the lettéd. 1 28. The
letter also requested a verdigon and validation of the alleged debd.

Nevertheless, on October 14, 2013, Plaintiff received a letter from ECMC e fititiéice
of Default.” Id.  29. Sammonsagainrespondedn Plaintiff's behalfwith a cease and desist
letter. Id. 7 30. Like the letter to Pioneer, this letter informed ECMC that Plaintiff had retained
counsel and that she was not the correct “Sandra Williams,” and requested cati@rifand
validation of the debt. Id. On October 25, 2013, ECMC responded directly to Rfgint
acknowledging thathey had received the correspondence from Sammons buhéyatvould
continue to treat the debt as outstanding unless Plaintiff provided ECMC with coperssotial
security card, birth certificate, and driver’s license. § 31.

On January 28, 2014, ECMC sent yet another letter attempting to collect on théddebt.
1 32. Plaintiff broughthe instant actionn responsgalleging that ECMC, Performant, and
Pioneer’sactions violated the Florida Consumer Collection Practices Act, Fla. Stat. § 69.55
seq.(*FCCPA”) and the Fair Debt Collection Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. § £698q(“FDCPA").2
She asserts that ECMC violatedrious provisions othe FCCPA—specificdly, Fla. Stat. 88
559.72(3), (7), (9), and (18Fount I} And she asserts that Performant violated various provisions

of the FCCPA (Count Il) and the FDCPA (Count IlI).

2 Pioneer has since been dismissed from thisracSeeDocs. 11 and 12.
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ECMC now seeks to dismiss the claims against it and Perfarmamirgues that he
FCCPA claims are preempted by tHeggher Education Act, 20 U.S.C.®01et seq.(*HEA”),
andthat, in the alternative, Plaintiff has failed to state a clagonwhich relief can be granted
With regard to the FDCPA claim against Perform&@MC arges thatPlaintiff has also failed
to state a claim for reliegndthat, in the alternative, the FDCPA'’s exceptions for creditors and
bona fidefiduciaries bar Plaintiff's claim.

. LEGAL STANDARD

To survive a motion to dismiss, a pleading must include a “short and plain statement of the
claim showing that the pleader is entitled to religfshcroft v. Igbal556 U.S. 662, 6778 (2009)
(quoting Fed. R. Civ. P. 8(a)(2)). Labels, conclusions andulaic recitations of the elements of
a cause of action are not sufficiemd. (citing Bell Atlantic Corp. v. TwombJ\650 U.S. 544, 555
(2007)). Furthermore, mere naked assertions are not suffideintA complaint must contain
sufficient factual matter, which, if accepted as true, would “state a claiefig¢bthat is plausible
on its face.” Id. (quotingTwombly 550 U.S. at 570). “A claim has facial plausibility when the
plaintiff pleads factual content that allows the court to draw the rebboinference that the
defendant is liable for the misconduct allegettl” (citation omitted). The court, however, is not
bound to accept as true a legal conclusion stated as a “factual allegation” in ghaicorid.

[11. DISCUSSION

A. Motion to Dismiss Claims against Perfor mant

As an initial matter, the Couvtill address whether ECMC may seek to disrthisglaims
againstits codefendantPerformant. The answer, of course, is no. Regardletizeddlleged
agencyrelationship between ECMC and Performdhney arestill separate entities. The motion

to dismisswas filed only by ECMC, and may sesXief only asit relates to ECMC. Further,



Performant’sattempt to join ECMC’s motion is impropeEven if the Court were texcusethe
untimelyand unclear nature of ttegtempted joinderPerformant has already filed Amswerto
the ComplaintseeDoc. § thusrenderingany Rule 12 motion to dismissnullity. SeeFed. R.
Civ. P. 12(b) ("A motion asserting any [Rule 12(b)] defenses must be made befaliagliéa
responsive pleading is allowéll.see also Leonard v. Enterprise Rent a Cat9 F.3d 967, 971
n.6 (“After answering the complaint, the defendants filed Rule 12(b)(6) mdbagismiss . . . .
Under Rule 12(b), these motions were a nullity; by filing an answer, the defehddrgschewed
the option of asserting by motion that the complaint failed to state a claim for relief.”).

Theargumentselating tothe claims again®erformant a not properly before the Court.
The Courtwill therefoe denyECMC’s motionto dismissas to Counts Il and Ill. Further, because
Performant’s joinder to the motioto dismisswould be futile, the Court willalso deny
Performant’sotice of joindeas it is a nullity.

B. Motion to Dismiss Claim against ECMC

1. “Creditor” Exceptionto the FCCPA

The Court willfirst resolveECMC's contentionthat Plaintiff's FCCPA claim must fail
becausd-la. Stat. $59.72 applies only to debt collectors, Bldintiff has alleged th&CMCis
a “creditor” as defined by Fla. Stf§ 559.55(5)seeDoc. 1 § & In support of itsassertiorthat
Section559.72applies only to debt collectqrECMCdoes not cite the statutory language. ECMC
also does not cite any bindingse law. Rather, ECM@tesonly: (1) Plaintiff's oppositionbrief;

(2) an unpublished opinion from the Northern District of Florida; anda(8)opinion thatis

3 The Complaint references Fla. Stat. § 559.55(3), which was the provision that defined
“creditor” at the time the Complaint was file@he definition of creditor is the same in both
versions of the statut&o the extent anoutdated references appear in the parties’ submissions,
the Court will update them in this opinitmreflectthe most recent version of the statute.
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irrelevant tothe point it isseekingto make. SeeDoc. 27 at 4 (citing~reeman v. Great Lakes
Educational Loan ServsCase No. 1:2v-331, 2013NL 2355541, at *{N.D. Fla. May 28, 2013)
Eke v. FirsBank Fbrida, 779 F. Supp. 2d 1354, 1357 n.1 (S.D. Fla. 2011) (noting 8eadtions
559.553 and 559.5548f the FloridaStatuteggovern the practices of ‘debt collectors (Emphasis
added)).

Notaldy, ECMC ignoes the plain language of § 559.72, whgthtessimply that “no
person shall’ engage in thenumeratediebt collectiorpractices. And, moretroubling ECMC
also ignoreghe wellestablishedbody of case law whicklearly indicateghat 8§ 559.72is not
restrictedto debt collectors.Seg¢ e.g, Gann v. BAC Home Loans Servicing, 135 So. 3d 906,
910(Fla. 2d DCA 2014) (“Florida courts have recognized that the FCCPA applies noo oleliyt
collectors but also to any ‘person”Morgan v. VWlkins, 74 So. 3d 179, 181 (Fla. 1st DCA 2011)
(“Appellees conede that the trial court was in error when it ruled that FCCPA pertains only to
debt collectors”)Schauer v. Gen. Motors Acceptance Cogl9 So. 2d 809, 812 (Fla. 4th DCA
2002) (“While the Act does not define the term ‘person,’ it is not restricted to debttood’);
Kelliher v. Target Nat'l Bank826 F. Sipp. 2d 1324, 1327 (M.D. Fla. 2011 Athough the federal
FDCPA does not apply to original creditoiise FCCPA has been interpretedapply to original
creditors as well as debt collection agenciesECMC’s contentiorthat§ 559.72 containsome
sort ofdebt collectorexceptionis clearly without merit* andECMC has notset forthany other
reasomas towhy it should not be consideda “person”covered under §59.72. Accord Bentley
v. Bank of Am., N.A773 F. Supp. 2d 1367, 1372 (S.D. Fla. 20Imhe Courtthereforewill not

dismiss the clainagainst ECMQn this basis.

4 The Court will take this opportunity to remind ECMC'’s counsel that, as an officer obting
heis dbligatedto undertake a reasonable inquiry as to the legal contentions tsgdres See
Fed. R. Civ. P. 11(b)(2).



2. Preemptiorby theHEA

ECMC next argues thahe HEA preemis Plaintiff s FCCPA claim. The Supremacy
Clause of Article VI of the United Stat&onstitution provides that the laws of the United States
“shall be the supreme haof the Land . . . any Thing in the Constitution or Laws of any State to
the Contrary notwithstanding.” U.S. Const., art. VI, cl‘Qongress’dntent to preempstate law
may be explicitly stated in tHanguage of &ederal statuter implicitly contaned in the structure
andpurpose of the statute Cliff v. Payco Gen. Am. Credits, In863 F.81 1113, 1122 (11th Cir.
2004). The Supreme Court has identified three types of preemption: (1) expressipredg)pt
field preemption; and (3) conflict preemptiorsee id.(citing Wisconsin Public Intervenor v.
Mortier, 501 U.S. 597, 60085 (1991)). “Express preemption’ occurs when Congress has
manifested its intent to preempt state law explicitly in the language of the statuite‘Field
preemption”occurs when federal regulation in a legislative field is so pervasive that it can
reasonably be inferred that Congress left no room for the states to supplengse id. And
“conflict preemption”arises when “it is impossible to complyth both fedeal and state lay or
when ‘state law stands as an obstacle to achieving the objectives of the federal Ithw.”
Regardless of the type of preempti@ourts “start with the assumption that the historic police
powers of the states are not superseddédsral law unless preemption is the clear and manifest
purpose of CongressJd.

a. TheHEA

Congress enactetld HEA to address the need to provide financial assistance to students
in higher educationSee Payco363 F.3d at 1122 Title IV of the HEA authorizes the Secretary
of Education to administer a number of federal student loan and grant progsam&l. Under

these programdendersissueto studentsand theirparentsloansunder favorable termthat are



guaranteed by guaranty agencies and ultimately by the federal goverr$eent. Because the
United States guarantees these loans, it has an interpsitatting itself against the risk of
unreasonable loss by ensuring that lenders employ due diligence in the collectice dbdms
See id.

To carry out the purpose of the lognograms, e HEA authorizes the Secretary of
Educationto promulgate regulationthat apply to third party servicersSeg e.g, 20 U.S.C. §
1082a)(1) The Secretary of Education hascordinglyjssueddetailedregulations thaset forth
mandatoryminimum procedures regardirtge diligent collection oflefaultedstudent loansSee
34 C.F.R. § 682.41D)(6).

ECMC argues that iregulation preemptBlaintiff's claim® Specifically, itassertghat
the regulatiois express preemption clause apglsee34 C.F.R. 8 682.1(Qb)(8), or that in the
alternative, conflict preemption applieét the outset, the Court rejsdECMC’s suggestion that
“state claims are preempted in any circumstance where state law would otherwiate rpge
litigation collection activity,” Doc.15 at 8. This argument @emised orBrannan v. United
Student Aid Funds, Inc94 F.3d 1260, 185(9th Cir. 1996)which is not binding on this Court
and whichhas been criticized by the Eleventh Cirdait failing to engage in a provisieboy-
provision preemptioanalysis see Paycp363 F.3d at 11230. The Eleventh Circuit’'s decision
IS more persuasive, and, in any casehe one that is binding on this Court. Tdogrectanalysis

is thereforewhethera claim arising under each of theasserted provisions of the FCCR#

> Preemption may result fronegulations promulgated by a federal agency acting within the
scope of its congressionally delegated authoi@ge Louisiana Pub. Serv. Comm’'n v. F.C.C.
476 U.S. 355, 369 (1986). The parties do not distmatiethisregulationwaspromulgated within
the scope of congressionally delegated authority.
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preemptednot whether the FCCPA as a whole is preemfateckgulating prditigation collection
activity.

Because the express preemption clansg4 C.F.R.8 682.410providesessentiallythe
same standarmf reviewas conflict preemptigriheCourt will proceedo analyze ECMC’express
and conflictpreemption argumentegether See34 C.F.R. § 682.410(b)(8)The provisions of
. . this sectionpreempt any State law, including State statutes, regulations, oy thaésould
conflict with or hinder satisfaction of the requirements of these provisjons.”

b. Fla. Stat. § 559.72(3)

Florida Statutes §59.72(3)provides that “no person shall . . . [t]ell a debtor who disputes
a consumer debt that [the person attempting to collect the debt] will disclosethera. . .
information affecting the debtor’s reputatioor fcredit worthiness without ab informing the
debtor that the existence of the dispute will also be disclaseequiredoy subsection (6)
ECMC argues that Plaintiff's claimnder this sectioms preempted because it is “expressly
requiredto send notices [that] ‘notify the borrower that the agency will report the dedaalilt t
nationwide consumer reporting agencies to the detriment of the borrower’sratedjt” Doc.
15 at 11-12 (quoting 34 C.F.R. 8682.410(b)(5)(vi)(F)). The Court is not persuaded.

First, there is no reason why it would be impossible to comply with botHettheral
regulation and the state law. All the federal regulation requires is thatranty agencgend a
noticethatnotifies the borrowethatit will report a defaultto consumer reporting agencieand
ECMC points to no provision whiatequireshata guaranty agencyotinform the debtor that the
existence of any disputeill also be discloseddr that precludes the disclosu@ consumer
reporting agenciesf the existence of angispute as required by §59.72(6) SecondECMC has

set forth no reason wirgquiring aguaranty agencgimplyto inform the debtor thathe existence



of any disputewill also be discloseds requiredvould conflict with or otherwisehinder the
satisfaction ofits mandateddebtcollection activities Indeed, Bhough 8§ 559.72(3appeardo
impose a disclosuneequirementhat is nomnecessarily dictatebly the federal regulatigrihere is
simply no evidence that permittindaintiff's claim to proceed would stand as an obstacle to
achieving the objectives of thederal regulation

The Court will therefore deny ECMC’s motion to dismiss as it relates to Plaimddim
for a violation of 8559.72(3). Accord Paycp363 F.3dat 1130 (ecognizingthat althougtthe
statute of limitations under the FCCPA is longer tti@a oneunder the FDCPAnevertheless
holding that plaintiffs FCCPA claim was not preempted becaudbe FCCPA’'sextended
limitationsperiod“‘does not presdrsuch a threat to the continued participation of lenders in federal
student loan programs that the Florida Act can be deemed to obstruct the accomplishih@nt of
objectives of the HEA.").

C. Fla. Stat. 8§ 559.72(7)

Florida Statutes 8§ 559.72(7) provides that “no person shall . . . [w]illfully comntanica
with the debtor or any member of her or his family with such frequency as canaiglgisbe
expected to harass the debtor or her or his family, or willfully engage inatthduct which can
reasonably be expted to abuse or harass the debtor or any member of her or his fag@ipC
argues thallaintiff’'s claimunder this sectiors preemptethy 34 C.F.R. 8 682.410(b)(6)(i), which
requiresthat aguaranty agency “engage in reasonable and documented oollactivities on a
loan on which it pays a default claim filed by a lendértie Court agrees.

To begin with, the Court notes that it is not impossible to comply with both the federal
regulation and the state law. Indeed, nothing in the federal regulation requiragytizanty

agency behavanreasonablyn its attempts to collect om defaultedoan However, grmitting
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Plaintiff's § 559.72(7) claim to proceed wousthind as an obstacle to achieving thgctivesof
the federal regulationThe purpose of théederal regulations to ensurghata guaranty agency
will be diligent in itsefforts to collect ona defaultedloan. Subjecting qaranty agencies to
litigation and trial to resolve whethertheir debt collectionactions were“reasonable—a
determinatiorthat is inherently faeintensiveand subjectivesee Segal v. Nat'l Action Fin. Servs
Inc., Case No. 04€v-2388, 2006 WL 449176, at *9 (M.D. Fla. Feb. 22, 2608jould have a
chilling effecton debt collection effortand would hindethe satisfaction of theequirements of
thefederal regulation.

Plaintiff nevertheless arguésatherclaimis na preemptedecause the federal regulation
applesonly to borrowersandshe is not a borroweApparently, Plaintiff issuggestinghat if she
were a borrower, her claim would be preempted, but since she is not, her claim i€mutede
The Court is unpersuaddyy this argument, however, becausgosingthesetwo standardef
legal liability would similarly frustratethe objectives of the federal regulatid@uaranty agncies
are mandated to exercise diligaftorts to collect on alefaulted loan andsubjecting them to
liability in those instancas which they mistakenly seek to recover framincorrect party would
irreconcilablyconflict with that mandate.

In sum, Plaintiff's clainfor a violation of§ 559.72(7) is preempted because it waikhd
as an obstacle tachieving the objectives of the federal regulation. Accordingly, the Court will
grant ECMCS motion to dismiss as it relates to Plaintiff's claim for a violation $5%8.72(7).

d. Fla. Stat. 8§ 559.72(9)

Florida Statutes §59.72(9) provides that “no person shall . . . [c]laim, attempt, or threaten

to enforce a debt when such per&aows that the debt is not legitimate, or assert the existence of

some other legal right when such person knows that the right does not BAs8C argues that
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Plaintiff's claim under this provision is preempted by the federal colleatignirements set forth
in 34 C.F.R. 8 682.410(b)(6), which consistao$pecific set of actions a guaranty agemeist
take in attempting to collect on a defaulted lodine Court disagreeslt is clearly possible to
comgy with both the HEA and £59.72(9) and there iso conflict betweerthe Florida provision
andthe federal regulationindeed, a stated by the Eleven@ircuit:

For us to conclude that this provision of the Florida Act hinders the

completion of the sequence of collection activities, we would have

to first conclude that the regulations require a tpady delb

collector to attempt to collect a debt that it knows is not legitimate

or to assert the existence of a legal right that it knows does not exist.

We are certain that the HEA and its regulations do not contemplate

third-party debt collectors attempting to collect debts that are not
legitimate or assertingghts that do not exist.

Paycq 363 F.3d at 1129Tellingly, ECMC advances no evidence in support of its argument and
only asserts in a conclusory manner that “[the] federal collection requit@meeampts Plaintiff's
misidentification claims under Fliola Statute § 559.72(9).” Doc. 15 at 11. The Court will
therefore deny ECMC’s motiaie dismiss tathe extenthatit argues thaPlaintiff's claim under
§ 559.72(9)s preempted by the HEA
e. Fla. Stat. § 559.72(18)

Florida Statutes 59.72(18)generallyprohibits a person who ettempting to collecbn
a debt from communiciaig with the debtor if the person knows that the debtor is represented by
an attorney with respect thatdebt. ECMC argues that Plaintiff’'s claim under this provision is
preemptedby the federal collection requirements set forth in 34 C.F6828410(b)(6) The Court
agrees. First, it is impossible fora guarantor to comply with both the FCCPA and the federal
regulations, because one mandates, without exceplir@ef communications with the borrower
while the otherprohibits such communicationkthe borrower is represented by an attorney

Compare, e.9g.34 C.F.R. 682.410(b)(6)(ii) (“the ageneywstsend a noticéo the borrowet) with
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Fla. Stat. 559.72(18)'no person shall . . [clommunicatevith a debtot) (emphases added)
Secongdimposing this requirementould hinder the satisfaction die mandated debt collection
steps. AccordFischer v. UNIPAC Serv. Corp519 N.W. 2d 793, 7989 (lowa 1994)(holdng
that the HEA preempts a similar provision untterlowa Consumer Credit Cogle Finally, as
discussed in Section III.B.2.supra the CourtrejectsPlaintiff's argument premised on the fact
that shas not the “borrower.” The Court will therefore grant ECMC’s motion to dismiss as to
Plaintiff's claim for a violation oSection 559.72(18).

3. Failure to State a Claim for Violation of Fla. Stat. 8§ 559.72(9)

ECMC finally argues thaPlaintiff has failed to state a claifor a vidation of Florida
Statute § 559.72(9) because shen@sadequately allegethat ECMCknew that the debt it was
attempting to collect was not legitimat€he Court disagrees. The CoretognizeshatSection
559.72(9) requires actual knowleddgeee Bacelli v. MFP, In@.29 F. Supp. 2d 1328, 1337 (M.D.
Fla. 2010). Plaintiff, however,was not required tospecifically allege that ECMChad any
documentation that would establish actual knowledge that she did not in fact owe the delpf. Rathe
in opposing anotion to dismissthe nonmoving party is entitled tall reasonable inferences that
can be drawn from theell-pleadedactsin the complaint.See Igbgl556 U.S. at 663.

Acceptingthe facts alleged in the Complaag true and drawing akasonabléenferences
in Plaintiff's favor, the Court concludes that Plaintiff has stated a plausibim for relief under
§ 559.72(9). Specifically Plaintiff has alleged thatl) ECMC consen¢dto and has knowledge
and control of the collection activities dsiagentsCompl.{ 10; (2)she personallynformed
ECMC and its agenbn twoseparateccasions that she was not thener of thedebt,id. § 19,

22; (3) a Life Lock representative contadtECMC about the mistaken identiig. § 20;and(4)
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her attorney informed ECM@nd its agents on three separate occasi@tshe was not the owner
of the debtjd. 1125, 28, 30.

Plaintiff's allegationsestablish that severdalifferent partiesinformed orattempted to
inform ECMC on no less than half a dozsparate occasiofisat Plaintiffdid not own the debt
andpermitthe Court tareasonably infer thaat some poinECMC gainedactual knowledge that
Plaintiff was not the owner of the del#Accord Martorella v. Deutsche Bank Nat'l Trust Ca31
F. Supp. 2d 1218, 1227 (S.D. Fla. 2013) (finding knowledge adequately alleged where plaintiff
assertedhat she notified defendant of its error but defendant nevertheless proceedesl dali it
collection activities). Further,for purposes of resolvinthis issue,the Court need not determine
specificallyafter which communication it could reasonably be inferred that ECMC gaineal act
knowledge, becaudelaintiff alleges that ECMC continued its collection activiteen after all
of these communication&Compl § 3:32. Plaintiff has adequately stated a claim d&oviolation
of Section 559.72(9). Accordingly, the Court wilkeny ECMC’s motion to dismisBlaintiff's
claim for a violation of that section
V. CONCLUSION

For thereasonstatedabovejt is herebyORDERED AND ADJUDGED:

1. ECMC'’s Motion to Dismiss (Doc. 15) iISRANTED-IN-PART and DENIED-
IN-PART.

2. Theviolations of Florida Statutes 88 559.72(7) and 559.724ll8yedin Count |
are herebYDISMISSED. The Motion to Dismiss iDENIED as to the remainder
of Countl andDENIED as to Countdl andlll.

3. Performant’s Notice of Joinder (Doc.)24 DENIED asit constitutes a nullity.

DONE AND ORDERED in Tampa, Florida on February 26, 2015.
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L
Charlene Edwards Honeywell
United States District Judge

Copies to:
Counsel of Record and Unrepresented Parties, if any
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